
NATIONALLY SIGNIFICANT INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS PANEL
AGENDA

Venue: Ennerdale Room, Whitehaven Civic Hall, Lowther Street, 
Whitehaven. CA28 7SH 

Date: Thursday, 21st July, 2016
Time: 2.00 pm
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby       Tel:  01946 598328

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 1 March 2016 1 - 2

4. Moorside Project Consultation Response - Discussion 

5. National Grid - North West Coast Connections (NWCC) Project - Draft 
Statement of Community Consultation (June 2016) 

3 - 38

6. Date and Time of Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Nationally Significant Infrastructures Projects Panel 
will be held on Thursday 22 September 2016 at 2:00pm at The Ennerdale 
Room, Whitehaven Civic Hall, Lowther Street, Whitehaven.

Membership: Councillors Mike Starkie (Chair), Lena Hogg (Deputy Chair), Michael McVeigh, 
David Moore and David Riley

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 598328
E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



NATIONALLY SIGNIFICANT INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS PANEL

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 1 MARCH 2016

Present: Councillors  Lena Hogg, David Moore and David Riley

Apologies for absence were received from Mike Starkie and Michael McVeigh

Officers: John Groves, Strategic Nuclear and Planning Manager; Denise James, Member 
Services Officer

18 Minutes of the Meeting held on 18 January 2016 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 18 January 2016 be signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record.

19 NuGeneration Ltd - Moorside Project - Statement of Community Consultation 

Consideration was given to the draft NuGeneration Ltd – Moorside Project – Statement of 
Community Consultation and the proposed draft of Council’s formal response to the 
consultation relating to the document.

RESOLVED – That taking on board minor amendments and comments made by Members

a) the report be noted; and 
b) the draft response be approved as the Councils response.

The Meeting closed at 10.15 am 

Chairman

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
National Grid – North West Coast Connections (NWCC) Project – Draft Statement of 
Community Consultation (June 2016) 
 
 

 

LEAD OFFICER: Steve Smith 
REPORT AUTHOR: Charlotte Brown 
 

Summary and Recommendation: 
 
As part of the process of seeking a Development Consent Order (DCO) for a Nationally Significant 
Infrastructure Project (NSIP), it is necessary for an applicant to consult with the Council to enable 
consideration of a Statement of Community Consultation (SoCC). 
 
This consultation is about the process of community engagement. It is not about commenting on 
the detail of the proposed development itself. 
 
National Grid have prepared a second draft SoCC which sets out the statutory pre-application 
consultation that National Grid intends to carry out on their proposals for the project and how 
people can comment on and influence its development prior to an application for development 
consent being made to the Secretary of State. 
 
This revised draft SoCC reflects feedback from the Planning Performance Agreement (PPA) group 
during consultation on the original draft version of the SoCC.  This previous draft SoCC was the 
subject of consultation with the Council. 
 
The SoCC will then become a public document which will be consulted on as part of National Grid’s 
stage 3 statutory public consultation anticipated to begin in autumn 2016. 
 
Members of the panel are requested to consider the submitted statement, and the response 
which the Council would make to National Grid in respect of the North West Coast Connections 
Project. 
 

 
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1 The North West Coast Connection (NWCC) project, led by National Grid, seeks to provide a 

connection for the development of the new Moorside nuclear power station, providing up to 

3.4GW of electricity, on land adjacent to the existing Sellafield Site.  

1.2 The NWCC project is a major infrastructure development, which will affect most of Cumbria, and 

comes under the Planning Act 2008 development consent regime for Nationally Significant 

Infrastructure Projects (NSIPs). The project will be subject to a Development Consent Order (DCO) 

application to the Secretary of State. 

1.3 Under the regulations National Grid must prepare a Statement of Community Consultation (SoCC) 

and implement consultation on their proposed project in line with that statement. The SoCC 

provides a framework for the community consultation and is designed to ensure that effective 

pre-application consultation is carried out.  

1.4 Stage 1 of the NWCC project non-statutory ‘strategic options’ public consultation ran for 12 
weeks from 4 September until 28 November 2014 and outlined National Grid’s proposals to 
connect and export the electricity that will be generated by the proposed Moorside development. 
 

1.5 The feedback received during this consultation, together with the findings from environmental 
and technical studies, helped National Grid select which route corridor to take forward to the 
next stage of the development process. 

 

1.6 In autumn 2015, National Grid undertook a second series of community events during a non-
statutory ‘route alignment’ public consultation giving members of the public the opportunity to 
learn more about how National Grid was shaping the NWCC proposals.   

 

1.7 National Grid intends to conduct a stage 2 statutory public consultation in autumn 2016.  
Members of the public will be asked to provide their views on the route the new connection will 
take; the specific technologies proposed to build the connection; the methods proposed to lessen 
the impact of a new connection and any other issues the community feel is important.   

 

1.8 The stage 2 statutory public consultation will be the last consultation on the project before 
National Grid makes its DCO application.  It is the final chance for the public and interested parties 
to make their views known and to influence the project design.  

  
1.9 The nature of the proposals is not a matter for consideration here.  There will be opportunity for 

the Council to formalise its views on the development proposal during the consultation period. 
 

  

Page 4



2.0 Purpose of the Report 
 

2.1 Prior to submission of the application for a DCO the applicant is required to consult statutory 
parties, including the Council, over its intended approach to consultation over its proposals 
leading up to the submission of the DCO application.  The Council has 28 days to respond.  
 

2.2 This report provides a summary of comments made to the draft SoCC before the anticipated 
formal stage 2 consultation begins in September 2016, and does so within the statutory 28 day 
period for responses to be submitted. 
 

2.3 Appendix 1 details the Council’s original response (in the form of annotated comments within the 
PPA Group’s response report) to the previous draft SoCC of March 2016 whereby a number of 
comments and amendments were put forward by the Council, as part of the PPA Group, and 
presented back to National Grid on 7 April 2016 in a report titled ‘PPA Group Authorities 
Response to National Grid’s NWCC Draft SoCC’.  The PPA Group (consisting of Cumbria and 
Lancashire local authorities including the LDNPA) is working with National Grid to ensure that 
local people are fully informed about the project and have the opportunity to give their views 
during the consultation process. 
 

2.4 In light of these comments made in March/April National Grid suggested that there was a limit to 
the extent to which changes can be made to the SoCC ahead of issuing the final draft documents 
for the statutory consultation which was originally due to commence in June 2016.  National Grid 
therefore provided a ‘register of issues’ to ensure all comments were documented and not lost.  
This register accompanies the issue of the current draft SoCC and includes National Grid’s 
response to each of the issues raised stating whether or not the SoCC would be changed as a 
result of the comments put forward.  
 

2.5 A copy of the current draft SoCC (June 2016) for PPA consultation in anticipation of the formal 
consultation to begin in autumn 2016 is provided as a background paper. 

 

3.0 Key Issues 
 
3.1 From the record of the Council’s previous comments made to the draft SoCC (March 2016) (refer 

to Appendix 1) some comments have been incorporated into the revised draft SoCC to some 
extent however, there remain a significant number of issues that need to be addressed.   

 
3.2 There are also some suggestions made by the PPA group as a whole that have not been 

incorporated into the draft SoCC as National Grid consider that there is no requirement for 
further change of the SoCC (refer to Appendix 2).   As such, the Council and PPA Group’s original 
objections still stand.   The paragraphs below outline the Council’s previous comments that 
remain (in some cases partially) unresolved. 

 

3.3 The Council recommended a clear explanation of the NWCC project’s relationship with Moorside 
and the NSIP process.  A sentence has been added on NSIPs yet it is felt that this needs to be 
elaborated upon further still in order to make the relationship clear to the reader. 

 

3.4 The Council recommended a more detailed explanation of the examination process and 
community engagement in that process along with information on the involvement of local 
authorities.    The draft SoCC does include an explanation of the planning process involved yet 
with no mention of community involvement or the involvement of local authorities.   

Page 5



 

3.5 The Council recommended an additional paragraph on how people can access job opportunities 
and how NWCC is working with local businesses.  No such detail has been added to the draft SoCC 
other than providing press releases to the business community. 

 

3.6 The Council recommended the addition of a glossary in the SoCC and although a glossary has 
been added it remains incomplete as there are acronyms appearing in the draft SoCC that are not 
referenced in the glossary. 

 

3.7 The Council recommended that a paragraph on other current consultation should be added to 
the SoCC to help provide distinction between and awareness of separate consultations processes 
to the NWCC project, including the Council’s Site Allocations and Policies Plan consultation 
anticipated to winter 2016/2017.  A paragraph has been added on NuGen Moorside’s current 
consultation only. 

 

3.8 There are a number of comments made by the PPA Group that are related to the Council’s own 
comments with the key concerns being the connection to other consultation taking place 
separate to the NWCC project consultation; how consultation feedback will be used and; the 
inclusion of information on previous mitigation relating to, for example, the Duddon tunnel, in 
the s42 consultation enabling the public to comment on these also. 

 

4.0 Conclusions  
 

4.1 While it is noted that the revised draft SoCC (June 2016) details a number of improvements since 
the original draft SoCC issued in March 2016, there are a significant number of issues that still 
need to be addressed to ensure that the SoCC constitutes a robust consultation document, as 
required under Section 47 of the Planning Act 2008 for Nationally Significant Infrastructure 
Projects. 

 
4.2 The key points to be made in the response to the draft SoCC concern the connection to other 

consultation taking place separate to the NWCC project consultation; how consultation feedback 
will be used and; the inclusion of information on previous mitigation relating to, for example, the 
Duddon tunnel, in the s42 consultation enabling the public to comment on these also. 

 

4.3 The current draft SoCC (June 2016) is provided as a background paper.  Appendix 1 includes the 

previous PPA Group response to the original draft SoCC (March 2016) with the Council’s 

comments appearing in annotated form within the response.  Appendix 2 is a copy of National 

Grid’s ‘register of issues’ capturing all PPA comments made along with National Grid’s response 

to those PPA comments made.  

  

Page 6



Background Papers 
 
National Grid North West Coast Connections project Draft SoCC (June 2016) 

 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1: PPA Response (with annotations reflecting CBC comments) to original National 

Grid North West Coast Connections project draft SoCC (March 2016) 

Appendix 2: National Grid’s ‘register of issues’ 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



   
 

 

 
 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 

 

 

 
PPA Group Authorities   
 
NWCC 
 
Response to National Grid’s NWCC 
Draft Statement of Community 
Consultation 
 
March 2016 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 9



   
 

 

 
 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Address: Unit 6 Lakeland Business Park, Lamplugh Road, Cockermouth, Cumbria CA13 0QT     

Tel:  +44 (0) 1900 898600  

E-Mail:  planning.cumbria@wyg.com 

Web:  www.wyg.com 

Page 10

mailto:planning.cumbria@wyg.com
http://www.wyg.com/


   
 

Response to National Grid’s NWCC Draft Statement of Community 
Consultation  
 
Version 1 

 

 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 

 

Document Control 

 
Document: Response to National Grid’s NWCC Draft Statement of Community 

Consultation 

 

Project: North West Coast Connections 

Client: PPA Group Authorities 

Job Number: A072895 

File Origin: T:\Projects\A072895 NW Coast Connections\Work Packages\5. 
Community Consultation - Adequacy of consultation\Stage 3 Route 

alignment\SoCC\160321 Draft PPA SoCC Reponse v1.docx 

 

Document Checking: 

Prepared by: Peter Shannon Date: 21/03/16 

 

Reviewed by: Graham Hale Date: 21/03/16 

 

Version Date Status Checked for Issue 

1 21/03/16 Draft issued for comment Graham Hale 

2    

3    

4    

  

Page 11



   
 

Response to National Grid’s NWCC Draft Statement of Community 
Consultation  
 
Version 1 

 

 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 

 

Contents 

 
1 INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................................................... 1 

2 OVER ARCHING COMMENTS ...................................................................................................... 2 

2.2 Scope of consultation ............................................................................................. 2 

2.3 Ease of use of large documents ............................................................................... 2 

2.4 Timing of consultation ............................................................................................ 2 

2.5 Consultation Events, information points and deposit locations ..................................... 3 

2.6 Targeted consultation ............................................................................................ 3 

3 RESPONSE TO THE DRAFT SoCC ................................................................................................ 4 

3.1 Informal PPA Group feedback ................................................................................. 4 

3.2 Introduction Section ............................................................................................... 4 

3.3 Proposed Project ................................................................................................... 5 

3.4 Construction details ............................................................................................... 6 

3.5 The Planning Process ............................................................................................. 7 

3.6 Consultation .......................................................................................................... 7 

3.7 Timing of Section 47 consultation ............................................................................ 8 

3.8 Other consultations ................................................................................................ 9 

3.9 What National Grid will be consulting on ................................................................ 10 

3.10 Consultation Details ............................................................................................ 10 

3.11 Consultation with under-represented or marginalised groups ................................... 12 

3.12 Method of Consultation ....................................................................................... 12 

3.13 Consultation Events, information points and deposit locations .................................. 13 

3.14 Media/Advertising ............................................................................................... 15 

3.15 Response to the Section 47 Consultation ............................................................... 15 

3.16 Draft SoCC Notice ............................................................................................... 16 

4 CONCLUSION ......................................................................................................................... 17 

 

Appendix 1 – Draft SoCC V10– Informal PPA Group Review (18 November 2015)  

Appendix 2 – SoCC Information – Informal PPA Group Review (7 March 2016)  

 

Page 12



 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 
PPA Group Authorities 
A072895                            1 21/03/2016 

 
 

1 INTRODUCTION 

 

1.1.1 This report provides an evaluation of National Grid’s draft Statement of Community Consultation 

(SoCC) for the North West Coast Connections (NWCC) Project. It sets out the PPA Group 

Authorities Joint Response to National Grid’s request for comment received on 4 March 2016 as 

prescribed by Section 47 of the Planning Act 2008. 

1.1.2 The approach outlined in the draft SoCC is largely welcomed and is appropriate given the scale and 

importance of the NWCC Project. These comments build upon those raised informally with National 

Grid during earlier drafting, and the extent to which these issues are now reflected in the current 

draft version of the SoCC.  

1.1.3 The PPA Group has welcomed the opportunity to provide informal comment on the drafting of the 

SoCC and this statutory opportunity to provide further views on the SoCC for the NWCC Project.  

1.1.4 This response has been prepared by WYG in support of the PPA Group Authorities and represents a 

full review of the draft SoCC produced by National Grid. It has been informed by the views of the 

PPA Group Authorities and formally agreed to by the Authorities prior to submission.  

 

  

Page 13



 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 
PPA Group Authorities 
A072895                            2 21/03/2016 

 
 

2 OVER ARCHING COMMENTS 

 

2.1.1 The following section provides a brief overview of the main overarching comments that the PPA 

Group consider need to be addressed by National Grid.  

2.2 Scope of consultation 
  

2.2.1 The PPA Group has not has sight of the consultation documents, however, the Group is concerned 

that based on the current version of the draft SoCC there is a risk that the public is unaware of the 

options for the transmission technology, and that the proposed use of pylons, undergrounding, 

tunnelling, etc is open for comment. The SoCC and the consultation must be clear on the scope of 

what people can comment on, including technology choice. This needs to be addressed in the final 

SoCC. More detail on the scope of consultation is provided section 3.9. 

2.3 Ease of use of large documents 
  

2.3.1 Given the scale of the documentation proposed (approximately 6,000 pages) and the need to 

largely provide this electronically, it is important to make the use of online documents as accessible 

as possible. In particular, the content pages should be hyperlinked so that they take the reader to 

the relevant section when pressed. This will avoid the need to scroll or ‘slide’ down to them. 

2.3.2 This applies to all the large documents, including the technical documents referred to in paragraph 

2.5.11 of the draft SoCC. 

2.4 Timing of consultation  
 

2.4.1 The PPA Group are concerned about the timing of the consultation as set out in the draft SoCC. 

The ten week period coincides with the summer holiday period, and a reduction in Council decision 

making committees in August. This is a major issue that has been raised on a number of occasions 

by the PPA Group.  The PPA Group recommend that the consultation period be extended to at least 

12 weeks, information is provided as earlier as possible (prior to the consultation) and National Grid 

agree to accept holding responses from authorities prior to formal Council agreement. Section 3.7 

provides more detail.  

Page 14



 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 
PPA Group Authorities 
A072895                            3 21/03/2016 

 
 

2.4.2 Furthermore, the Group are concerned that the draft SoCC does not refer to other consultations 

that will be operating concurrently with the NWCC period, most notably NuGen’s consultation for 

the proposed new nuclear power station at Moorside. This is a major oversight and it is considered 

this will need to be addressed as this could lead to potential consultation fatigue and public 

confusion. This is detailed in section 3.8. 

2.5 Consultation Events, information points and deposit locations  
 

2.5.1 The PPA Group recognise and welcome the extensive programme of public exhibitions, information 

points and deposit locations set out in the draft SoCC. However, given the wide geographic spread 

of the project more locations have been suggested to ensure that all communities affected by the 

route have sufficient opportunity to take part in the consultation. These locations and further 

suggestions are provided in section 3.13.  

2.6 Targeted consultation   
 

2.6.1 Informing stakeholders and the wider community about the outcome of the consultation and the 

ongoing project development is a vital stage of the NWCC Project. This must be set out clearly in 

the SoCC and details of how feedback will be provided, together with the undertaking to conduct 

further targeted consultation should proposals change as a result of feedback received during the 

consultation. This is further detailed in paragraph 3.15.2.  

  

Page 15



 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 
PPA Group Authorities 
A072895                            4 21/03/2016 

 
 

3 RESPONSE TO THE DRAFT SoCC 

 

3.1 Informal PPA Group feedback 

 

3.1.1 The informal consultation carried out by National Grid to develop the current draft SoCC has been 

welcome. PPA Group Authorities have provided detailed comments on a number of occasions, the 

most recent of these being on 2 March 2016.  The main responses provided to date are appended 

to this report in Appendix 1 and 2.  

3.1.2 The Group are pleased to see that many of the issues raised in the response in November 2015 

(appendix 1) have been taken into account. However, there are a number that remain outstanding 

and are consequently highlighted in the following section. Furthermore, it is understood that in light 

of the latest suggested changes (March 2016), National Grid has suggested that they were unable 

to carry out all revisions suggested (appendix 2) ahead of issuing the final draft SoCC for the 

current statutory consultation. However, it is understood that the informal comments received so 

far have been added to a ‘register of issues’ to be addressed post SoCC consultation. Therefore, 

although the draft SoCC may not reflect all of the recent comments, these will be evaluated 

alongside the current document in the finalisation of the NWCC SoCC.  

3.2 Introduction Section 

 

3.2.1 The PPA Group consider that the purpose of the SoCC needs to be more defined. It should clearly 

state that the main purpose, which is to gather people's views, and that the consultation outlined in 

the Statement represents the main and best opportunity to influence the project prior to 

application.  In the interests of clarity, it is suggested that paragraph 1.1.2 would benefit from 

setting out ‘kV’ in full ‘400,000 kilovolts’ in the first instance. Furthermore, the second sentence 

would be clearer if it read ‘The UK system...’ instead of ‘This’.    

3.2.2 It is considered that paragraph 1.1.3 should emphasise that the NWCC is required as a result of the 

Moorside project to establish the link between the two projects from the beginning of the SoCC.  It 

is suggested that the first sentence of paragraph 1.1.4 should be edited to read ‘...of 132kV or 

above and a sufficient....’ rather than ‘in excess of 132,000 (132kV) volts and a sufficient’.  

Comment [ps1]: CBC7 

Page 16



 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 
PPA Group Authorities 
A072895                            5 21/03/2016 

 
 

3.2.3 It is highly recommended that a glossary of terms would be a useful addition as an appendix. This 

would help provide clarity for readers. However, as it stands section 5 of the contents should be 

titled in singular rather than plural, e.g. ‘Appendix’ rather than ‘Appendices’.  

3.3 Proposed Project 

 

3.3.1 The PPA Group consider that the draft SoCC is well written and largely clear and concise. The detail 

within section 1.2 is largely welcomed as it provides a comprehensive overview of the project. 

However, there may be some scope to further distil this section and omit some of the more 

technically-orientated text. Furthermore, there are a number of technical terms (in this section and 

throughout) for which relying on acronyms is not always helpful, even where these have been 

written out in full earlier in the document. Consideration should be given to the most appropriate 

usage to ensure clarity, and consideration should be given to providing a glossary as suggested in 

paragraph 3.2.3. 

3.3.2 Section 1.2 would benefit from additional text to encourage response to the consultation, and as 

such the following text (or similar) should be added, ‘Section 49 of the PA2008 requires us to have 

regard to your responses in deciding our final proposals.  We hope you will take this opportunity to 

tell us what you think.’. 

3.3.3 Following on from the comment in paragraph 3.2.2 of this response the SoCC needs to provide a 

clear explanation of the relationship with the proposed Moorside new nuclear power station and 

related Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project processes.  

3.3.4 Greater clarification of specific project locations is required to ensure that the community can 

understand the implications for their local area. For example, paragraph 1.2.4 lists modification to a 

substation at Sandgate, however, this location is unknown. It is suggested that minor or remote 

locations are followed by the geographic context, this follows the principle already set out in 

paragraph 1.2.4 (i) where Harker is followed by ‘near Carlisle’.   

3.3.5 It is suggested that the text should be revised to provide greater clarity as follows ‘400/132kV’ 

would be better changed to ‘400kV/132kV’. This occurs in paragraph 1.2.7 and 1.2.10.  

3.3.6 The PPA Group note that footnote three (page 4) provides further information related to the re-

evaluating options for a connection via a tunnel under the Duddon Estuary. Given the potential 

Comment [ps2]: CBC1 

Comment [ps3]: CBC2 

Page 17



 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 
PPA Group Authorities 
A072895                            6 21/03/2016 

 
 

importance of this option to many of the communities along the route is it strongly recommended 

that this text should be given more prominence in the main text, rather than appearing a footnote. 

The text must also make it clear that this option is outside National Grid’s proposed route.  

Following this it is also considered that paragraphs 1.2.10 to 1.2.12 and 1.2.18 should mention the 

re-evaluation of options and the possibility for a connection via a tunnel under the Duddon Estuary. 

3.3.7 Paragraph 1.2.14 presents the removal of the 132kV line as if the extent of this is fixed and agreed. 

The ongoing discussions over mitigation, particularly on the extent of undergrounding, clearly 

demonstrate that this is not the case. The SoCC must make it clear that National Grid have given a 

commitment to put the existing 132kV underground only where their route uses 400kV pylons. It is 

currently understood that this commitment does not extend to any sections of their route where 

undergrounding is the chosen technology. 

3.3.8 National Grid have previously informed consultees that in locations where the existing 132kV pylons 

are removed as part of mitigation, any replacement overhead 132kV lines would be using wooden 

poles (paragraph 1.2.15). In these locations steel lattice pylons will not be part of the transmission 

rationalisation options. 

3.4 Construction details 

 

3.4.1 The draft SoCC provides a detailed description of the construction process in paragraph 1.2.17 - 

1.2.25; this was welcome, albeit at times it seems overly complicated for the SoCC. Furthermore, it 

is considered that the details of undergrounding construction set out in paragraph 1.2.20 seems to 

be more extensive and overly focused on the negative impacts compared to the overhead 

paragraph 1.2.19. For example, there is no description of the overhead line working area and 

easement restriction.  It is considered that equal detail must be provided for each of the 

technologies in order that communities and other stakeholders can make a fair comparison of the 

potential impacts of construction and operation.  

3.4.2 It is suggested that the second sentence of paragraph 2.2.2 of the draft SoCC related to the 

deadline for receiving comments is unclear. All consultation material needs to clearly and 

consistently provide this information. 

Page 18



 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 
PPA Group Authorities 
A072895                            7 21/03/2016 

 
 

3.4.3 It is also understood that in specific sensitive locations the standard approach to construction will 

be amended to minimise the impacts on the sensitive features (as identified in the forthcoming 

Environmental Statement). This should be reflected in the SoCC.  

 

3.5 The Planning Process  

 

3.5.1 It is suggested that a detailed explanation of the examination process and community engagement 

in that process is required, including setting out the statutory involvement of local authorities. The 

reference to the ability to comment on the Preliminary Environmental Information (PEI) report is a 

welcome inclusion. However, paragraph 1.3.5 - 1.3.8 would benefit from some reworking to ensure 

that this is articulated clearly. 

3.5.2 Paragraphs 1.3.4 and 1.3.9 provide a table of timetable, and state that National Grid plan to submit 

the Development Consent Order application in March 2017 and aim to complete the examination 

process by March 2018. This should be stated as the current proposed timetable so that the public 

have a clear idea of when this is proposed, rather than just stating 2017 or 2018. Additionally, it is 

suggested that for a decision to be issued in late 2018 as stated in the diagram on page 10 the 

Examination would need to begin in late 2017 (12 month statutory process) rather than the 2018 

stated.  

3.5.3 Paragraph 1.3.6 should be revised to provide greater clarify of the EIA process. It is suggested 

that, the first sentence should this state ‘…..so that appropriate mitigation measures can be 

included within the final design’, rather than stating that mitigation will be merely ‘considered’.  

3.6 Consultation  

 

3.6.1 It would help maintain the focus of the SoCC and encourage consultation response if some text was 

added to paragraph 2.1.1 stating that ‘This is the main opportunity to influence the design of the 

project’.  

3.6.2 Paragraph 2.1.2 suggests that ‘Details on what will happen to consultation feedback can be found 

in section 4’. However, this is not the case as section 4 of the draft SoCC does not provide any 

Comment [ps4]: CBC3 

Page 19



 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 
PPA Group Authorities 
A072895                            8 21/03/2016 

 
 

detail on what will happen to consultation feedback.  It is suggested that this should be changed to 

Section 3 instead given the material provided set out in paragraph 3.1 to 3.3.  

3.7 Timing of Section 47 consultation 

 

3.7.1 The timing of the Section 47 is noted in paragraph 2.2.1 of the draft SoCC. The PPA Group have a 

number of concerns that the wider consultation strategy outlined in the SoCC will be undermined 

by the timing of the consultation period, as it coincides with the summer holiday period, and a 

reduction in Council decision making committees in August. This is a major issue that has been 

raised on a number of occasions by the PPA Group.  

3.7.2 Although it is acknowledged that the consultation period commences well in advance of holiday 

periods there is still an overlap of 3 weeks from the 21 July until consultation close of the 12 

August. The impact of this overlap coincides with the period that officers and elected member will 

be required to consider the complex proposals, agree the responses, while at the same time many 

may have a holiday conflict with the end of consultation sign off. Furthermore, this is compounded 

by the level of information that will be made available, it has already been indicated that there will 

be an extensive amount of maps and technical information (approximately over 6,000 pages).  

3.7.3 In order to ensure the consultation is robust and meaningful there are a number of measures that 

National Grid should take set out below. It is suggested that given the conflict with the holiday 

period impacts on approximately one third of the overall period, the consultation is extended to 

twelve weeks to provide residents and organisations with adequate time to review the information, 

and to ensure endorsement through relevant Committees.  

3.7.4 As stated in paragraph 3.7.1, the PPA Group are also concerned that once council committee and 

scrutiny panel dates are taken into account, the proposed consultation period will not allow time for 

the councils to provide a high quality, technically robust response. This is further emphasised as the 

programme of meetings is greatly reduced over the holiday period and specifically towards the end 

of the consultation period when Council’s would most likely be in a position to meeting agree 

responses. Additionally, there is limited efforts that can be done to alter internal arrangements to 

accommodate the time frame, and it is felt that it will be difficult to take into account the views of 

their communities within these time constraints. Consequently, the PPA Group request that where 

necessary, officer level ‘holding response’ should be acceptable in the first instance with council 

endorsement following at a later date post consultation close. The current schedule of committee 

Comment [ps5]: CBC4 

Page 20



 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 
PPA Group Authorities 
A072895                            9 21/03/2016 

 
 

meetings suggests that this may be late September 2016. National Grid must clearly state that they 

will accept this proposal in the SoCC.  

3.7.5 Furthermore, it is also recommended that National Grid should undertake to disclose as much 

information as possible in order to ensure that stakeholders, businesses and communities can fully 

appreciate the potential impact of the proposed development and consider this in the response the 

forthcoming consultation. For example, it would be helpful if the main evidence such as the PEI and 

associated documents is shared in advance so that understanding could be developed from an early 

stage. Additionally, as much data should be made available through other accessibly means, such 

as the National Grid online mapping system to enable an efficient and full response to be made.   

Also, given the high level of community interest and the support for the offshore route at the 

previous consultation, it is important that the full suite of information for the proposed onshore 

route and technology to be used along it is made available.  

3.7.6 Following the views outlined above, the PPA Group is also concerned about the ability of parish 

councils to provide full consideration of the proposals and large amount of information given that 

some of the committee cycles and more limited meetings planned over the holiday period. As with 

other stakeholders, early prior sight of the information or extension to the period for acceptance of 

consultation responses would help to ensure effective engagement.   

3.8 Other consultations 

 

3.8.1 The PPA Group are concerned that the draft SoCC does not refer to other consultations that will be 

operating at the concurrently with the NWCC period. The PPA Group are aware of a number of 

consultations, and has made National Grid aware of these through informal discussions (see 

appendix 1). The Authorities are concerned that the whole section referring to ‘other consultations’ 

has been removed from the current version of the draft SoCC. It is considered that this information 

is very important to the communities that will be affected by the route in order to provide clarity.  

The PPA Group raised this issue a key concern in previous informal feedback set out in Appendix 1.  

3.8.2 The most notable consultation in this period will be undertaken by NuGen regarding the proposal 

new nuclear power station at Moorside. This is planned to run 14 May  to 26 July 2016 and so will 

greatly overlap with the NWCC consultation. Given the similarity of the consultation process there is 

a clear need to avoid consultation fatigue and public confusion through clear delineation of project 

Page 21



 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 
PPA Group Authorities 
A072895                            10 21/03/2016 

 
 

and the alignment with other consultation processes. As it stands it is considered that the failure to 

at least cross reference to the NuGen consultation represents an over sight in the draft SoCC. The 

PPA Group is also aware of a number of potential local plan consultations and other major 

developments that may be also consulting the communities. National Grid must also consider the 

impact of these other consultations.  

 

3.9 What National Grid will be consulting on 

 

3.9.1 Following on from comments set out in paragraph 3.5.1 of this paper, there is a potential for an 

element of confusion between the consultation on the actual project and the invitation for comment 

on the PEI. Therefore, it is suggested that the scope for proposed project and the PEI report and 

request for feedback are set out separately within paragraphs 2.3.2 – 2.3.6.   

3.9.2 The PPA Group are concerned that with the current version of the draft SoCC there is a risk that 

the public is unaware of the options for the transmission technology, and that the proposed use of 

pylons, undergrounding, tunnelling etc is open for comment. The SoCC and the consultation must 

be clear on the scope of what people can comment on, including technology choice. At the last 

consultation, the offshore route appeared on page 37 of the consultation document, and as a result 

there was a risk that people thought that the consultation scope was only for onshore route 

options.  

3.9.3 Paragraph 2.3.2 of the draft SoCC should be amended to state ‘We will also set out information on 

which we have based our decisions, [both for the selected option and for alternative options which 

have been rejected (or have not been taken forward), including our proposals for’. This is required 

so that the decisions on option selection are clear. 

3.10 Consultation Details  
 

3.10.1 The PPA Group note the basis that National Grid has used to develop the consultation zone for the 

project outlined in paragraph 2.4.3. The extension of this zone and the number of addresses that 

this takes in is welcome. However, it is considered that there may be occasion where the impact of 

the project on communities along the route extends out with the 1km buffer. As such. it is 

suggested that the project Zone of Theoretical Visibility is used to ensure that those members of 

Page 22



 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 
PPA Group Authorities 
A072895                            11 21/03/2016 

 
 

the community that may be affected (visually) by the route are consulted as appropriate.   

Furthermore, given the impact of the tunnel head works in Roosecote and Heysham it is considered 

that the consultation zone is likewise extended in these locations. This is particularly important in 

the Roosecote location, given that the constrained transport infrastructure and level of cumulative 

development in the area is likely to emphasise the impact of NWCC tunnelling works.  

3.10.2 It is considered that there is also a small area on the map along the coastal plain south of Moorside 

which should be included in the zone. This is the area between the coast and the consultation zone 

in the Sandscale/Drigg area. Given the visibility from this section of the coast it is important that 

local residents are included in the consultation zone, and receive the project newsletter 

3.10.3 The PPA Group welcomes the extent of the consultation zone surrounding Millom, reflecting the 

options for a connection via a tunnel under the Duddon Estuary. Additionally, the extension of the 

consultation zone (compared to earlier drafts) around Natland and Moota (Cockermouth) is noted. 

however, more information should be given to clarify the use of these remote locations out with the 

main project area. Furthermore, as the project changes it is suggested that National Grid  revise 

the consultation zone and consult additional communities accordingly.   

3.10.4 The draft SoCC provides a well thought out set of measures to ensure that members of the 

community are given the opportunity to access information about the Project and express their 

views. However, it is considered that more detail is required on how engagement will be 

undertaken with the wider community including young people and local businesses. This should 

demonstrate that consultation will ensure engagement with young people and those who may seek 

to take employment opportunities presented by the proposed development; and ensure awareness 

of the project by local businesses who may which to seek opportunities to become involved as part 

of the local supply chain network. 

3.10.5 Following informal discussion on the draft SoCC and the assurances by National Grid to undertake a 

programme of engagement with elected members during the first two weeks of the consultation, it 

is considered that this should be explicitly referenced in the SoCC. It is suggested that paragraph 

2.5.25 would be an appropriate location for this to be made.  

3.10.6 The deletion of the ‘Earlier Stages of Consultation’ section from the draft SoCC and reference to the 

Consultation Strategy (previously in paragraph 1.1.7 of the November draft SoCC) is noted.  The 

PPA Group consider that an understanding of the development of the project would be useful. 

Comment [ps6]: CBC5 

Page 23



 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 
PPA Group Authorities 
A072895                            12 21/03/2016 

 
 

Additionally, the previous stages of consultation must be properly referenced in consultation 

material, and appropriately recorded in advance of the Development Consent Order submission to 

demonstrate how the proposal has changed to reflect local opinion and circumstances. 

3.11 Consultation with under-represented or marginalised groups 

 

3.11.1 The PPA Group are pleased that National Grid are committed to ensuring that the consultation 

process and associated communications reach as many parts of the community as possible. In 

order to assist with this commitment the PPA Group members suggest that National Grid should 

work with local authorities to develop a list of ‘gatekeepers’ – i.e. organisations and individuals 

working with and/or representing some of the target groups listed. 

3.11.2 The PPA Group welcome the provision of freephone number (paragraph 2.4.5) for those who have 

difficulty providing written comments, and additionally the availability of a range of different 

versions of the materials and efforts to engage with hard-to-reach groups.  

3.11.3 Paragraph 2.4.9 of the Draft SoCC states that National Grid will be notifying those who have 

registered their interest on the project. It would be useful if section 2.5 articulated how this 

notification would be undertaken. Paragraph 2.5.24 refers to a text messaging service but it is 

assumed that electronic mail would also be used. 

3.12 Method of Consultation 

 

3.12.1 It is suggested that in addition to using the NWCC Project Website to promote information about 

the consultation, use could be made of the PPA Group members websites to raise awareness of the 

consultation.  

3.12.2 It is suggested that it would be useful if National Grid undertake some follow up checks on the 

methods of consultation, for example to check that a high percentage of intended recipients 

received the direct mail out or to understand which form of publicity generated most attendance at 

events etc and use this to inform further consultations.  

3.12.3 The PPA Group welcome the extension of the mailing of the project newsletter to all addresses in 

the consultation zone (see paragraph 3.10.1), rather than to 1km of the proposed route as for the 

Page 24



 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 
PPA Group Authorities 
A072895                            13 21/03/2016 

 
 

previous consultation. This will enable more communities affected by the development but more 

than 1km from the route to be included.  

3.12.4 The PPA Group consider that paragraphs 2.5.12 and 2.5.13 are unclear and contradictory. Greater 

clarity is required regarding how the documents can be ‘viewed’ or obtained, as well as the cost of 

documents of different mediums.  

3.13 Consultation Events, information points and deposit locations  
 

3.13.1 The PPA Group largely welcome the programme of public exhibitions, information points and 

deposit locations set out in section 2.5 and welcome the previous informal comments have been 

taken into account. However, there needs to be a greater explanation of the difference in 

consultation activities and materials available at each of the types of locations.   

3.13.2 The PPA Group suggest that National Grid must confirm the suitability of venues to host materials 

and events; additionally National Grid should review the accuracy of all location details before the 

consultation commences.  

3.13.3 Although the network of locations is welcomed the PPA Group remain concerned that there are a 

number of gaps. The following paragraphs provide further details of additional location and issues 

that must be addressed in order to facilitate a full and accessible consultation. 

3.13.4 It is considered that there is a gap in coverage of the consultation (exhibitions, deposit locations, 

information points) between Seaton and Aspatria within the Allerdale district, and as such it is 

suggested that an information point is located in Maryport, the nearest town serving those 

communities. 

3.13.5 There is also a significant gap in Information Points between Bootle and Broughton-in-Furness. An 

additional location is required in the Silecroft vicinity. Informal discussions with National Grid have 

failed to find a suitable venue. A possible location suggested by a Parish Councillor is: Silecroft 

Holiday Park, Contact Fellstead T: 08700 444444; E: info@fellstead.com . 

3.13.6 Furthermore, it is considered that an additional information point should be provided in Kirkby in 

Furness in particular, given that this settlement is closely affected by the existing and proposed 

pylon route. 

Page 25

mailto:info@fellstead.com


 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 
PPA Group Authorities 
A072895                            14 21/03/2016 

 
 

3.13.7 The Group still also have concerns regarding some events, such as Grizebeck have been 

programmed in the early days of the school summer holidays when many people (public and other 

key stakeholders) are likely to be away on holiday. This may impact on the ability of the local 

communities to attend and could impact on the feedback received. Accordingly, the PPA Group 

suggest that the programme of event should as far a possible be concluded before the school 

holidays commence (20 July 2016). Holding events on Mondays (currently avoided) and on other 

weekdays is preferable to running the events in the school holidays. 

3.13.8 A number of information points have been removed from the list outlined in the draft SoCC (Table 

2), compared to the early draft. The basis of this seems to be due to the location of the points 

remote from the current proposals. However, it is considered that as these sites have previously 

been used in earlier rounds of the project there is a basis for retaining some as information points 

to ensure communities are kept informed about the project. As such Arnside and Milnthorpe 

libraries should be retained. The deletion of Kirkby Lonsdale, Halton and Carnforth is largely 

accepted.  

3.13.9 It should be noted that the proposed deposit locations at Lancashire County Hall may need to be 

different to that set out in the draft SoCC. Due to ongoing office relocations and refurbishments it 

cannot be guaranteed that the will be suitable, therefore National Grid need to confirm an 

appropriate location in time for the consultation. Additionally, where events are ‘cancelled or 

rearranged for any reason, as much notice as possible will be given’ (footnote 9), however, there is 

no mention of how the community will be notified of any changes. 

3.13.10 The address of Dalton Library (Table 2) is incorrect and consequently the address must be changed 

from ‘Barrow-in-Furness’ to ‘Dalton-in-Furness’.  

3.13.11 The PPA Group welcome that use is being made of alternative venues in Ulverston more capable of 

hosting the material involved. However, more details are required to understand where in the 

Market Hall this information is going to be available. Additionally, it is also suggested that 

advertising such as a posters should be used to provide signposts to local information/deposit 

locations, for example, these could be used in South Lakeland District Council Coronation Hall 

contact centre and the staff advised so that they can direct people to where they can find the 

information in the Market Hall. This mention of raising awareness could greatly help the profile of 

the consultation.  

Comment [ps7]: CBC6 

Page 26



 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 
PPA Group Authorities 
A072895                            15 21/03/2016 

 
 

3.13.12 In order to aid readability of the SoCC it is suggested that table 2 and 3 could be structured more 

efficiently to avoid blank boxes. Furthermore, in table 2 the reference to ‘Head Librarian’ in the 

address of Ulverston and Kendal Libraries should be removed. The address for Barrow Island 

Library also needs to be updated as it is understood that is now located at Barrow Island Primary 

School.  

3.14  Media/Advertising  
 

3.14.1 Advance press briefings to the Local Authority Communications teams would be useful so queries 

from the public and press can be handled consistently and re-directed where appropriate 

(paragraph 2.5.20). 

3.14.2 The extensive list of media outlets where press releases will be sent and advertisements placed is 

welcome. Lakeland Radio and Bay Radio are listed as one, however, it is understood that these are 

separate stations, and both need to be informed. In addition to ‘Grange Now’ there is also a new 

publication called ‘Ulverston Now’ that should be added to the list.  

3.14.3 The provision for social media is noted, however, it is suggested that other platforms such as 

Facebook could be used to target different user groups.  

3.14.4 The reference to Project Map Booklet (paragraph 2.5.7), is welcomed, given that this will form an 

important part of the consultation for many of many of the consultees. 

3.15 Response to the Section 47 Consultation  

 

3.15.1 It is considered that in section 3.3 there is benefit in setting out more clearly whether National Grid 

intends to provide a detailed schedule of all the consultation responses received, together with a 

commentary as to whether or not they agree/not agree, and what changes they will make to the 

final proposal and the supporting evidence in light of the comments. This needs to be made clear 

so that communities and other consultees can understand decisions, and it is suggested that a 

tabular approach could be used.  

3.15.2 The undertaking to provide a final Consultation Report, providing details of how feedback received 

during the consultation has been taken into account is welcome. However, it is suggested that this 

section needs provide the undertaking to conduct further targeted consultation should proposals 

Page 27



 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 
PPA Group Authorities 
A072895                            16 21/03/2016 

 
 

change as a result of feedback received during the consultation. As such it is suggested that text is 

added following paragraph 4.5 from the draft SoCC (ref. 20151104 NGNWCC SoCC DRAFT V10); 

‘If, as a result of feedback, our proposals change to the extent that it is necessary to undertake 

further geographically targeted consultation, this would be carried out in accordance with the 

principles and methods set out in the SoCC.’ 

3.15.3 Furthermore, it is considered that the SoCC needs to clearly set out National Grid’s intention with 

regard to updating the public after the consultation and up to (and including) the Development 

Consent Order submission.  

3.15.4 It is considered that paragraph 3.1 is quite legalistic, therefore perhaps it would benefit from 

adding, ‘This means that we will try to take your comments into account in the way we finalise the 

project before making our application in April 2017’. 

3.15.5 A further paragraph is required in this section explaining what further opportunities there will be to 

comment on the project, for example at application stage. 

3.16 Draft SoCC Notice  

 

3.16.1 The PPA Group welcome that informal comments on the Draft SoCC Notice have been taken into 

account, and as such the current version provides a clear and well drafted notice.  

3.16.2 There are two minor grammatical errors with the SoCC Notice; which include an incorrect spelling 

of the word ‘route’ in footnote 1 and a comma has been added to an internet address (above list of 

hard copy locations) instead of a full stop. 

 

  

Comment [ps8]: CBC 7 

Page 28



 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 

 
PPA Group Authorities 
A072895                            17 21/03/2016 

 
 

4 CONCLUSION 

 

4.1.1 The PPA Group welcome this opportunity to provide formal comment on the drafting of the NWCC 

SoCC. The draft SoCC and programme of consultation outlined within it are largely appropriate 

given the scale and importance of the NWCC Project. However, as set out in this joint response 

there are a number of issues that need to be addressed to ensure that the consultation in summer 

2016 results in appropriate consultation with the communities affected by the proposed NWCC 

route.   

4.1.2 National Grid should continue to work with the PPA Group to develop the SoCC and the programme 

of consultation to ensure that it provides robust consultation that is required under Section 47 of 

the Planning Act 2008 for Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects.   

 

Page 29



 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 
                                       

 
 

Appendix 1 – Draft SoCC V10– Informal PPA Group Review (18 
November 2015) 

 

 

  

Page 30



 

www.wyg.com  creative minds safe hands 
                                       

 
 

Appendix 2 – SoCC Information – Informal PPA Group Review (7 
March 2016) 

 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 1 March 2016
	5 National Grid - North West Coast Connections (NWCC) Project - Draft Statement of Community Consultation (June 2016)
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2


